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LIFE AND WELLBEING 

Mgr Gian Karl Burlo (1898- 1970). 

October 17, 1944: Burlo accompanying Sir Edmond Schreiber, Governor 
and Commander-in-Chief (centre) and Vice Admiral L. H. K. Hamilton (Flag 
Officer, Malta) around the s t reets of war-tom Senglea. 

Remembering Mgr Gian .Karl BurlO, 
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Gian Karl Burlo, son ofEmmanuel 
and Catherina nee Chircop, was 
born in Senglea on September 
16,1898. . 

Educated at the government 
primary school, the Arch­
bishop's Seminary and the Royal 
University of Malta, he was or­
dained priest on December 20, 
1924. He obtained a bachelor's 
degree in Church law (B .L.Can.) 
and a Doctorate in Theology 
(D.D.) from the University of 
Malta on October 1, 1925. He 
then taught for seven years at 
the Archbishop's Seminary and 
16 at the Lyceum. 

Early on, h is interest in the for­
mation of youths was evident. He 
assembled youngsters to form a 
praesidum of the Legion of Mary. 

During the tough yeai·s of 
World War II, he served as mili­
tary chaplain at Fort Ricasoli. 
For the valour he showed and 
the service he had rendered in 
such difficult circumstances, he 
was decorated with the Africa 
Star, Defense Medal, War Medal 
and 1939-45 Star. 

On January 14, 1948, Mgr 
Michael Gonzi, Arcbishop of 
Malta, nominated Burlo as arch­
priest of the Senglea parish, suc­
ceeding Canon Archpriest 
Emmanuel Btincat, MBE, who 
heroically lived in Senglea 
throughout the war years. 

On January 18, Senglea-born 
Mgr Emmanuel Galea, Auxiliary 
Bishop and Vicar General, in 
the presence of the members of 
the Senglea Chapter and a large 
congregation, officially in­
stalled Canon Burlo as Senglea's 
new archpriest. 

Since at the time the basilica 
was in ruins due to the severe 
war bombardments, the cere.­
mony was held in the church of 
Our Lady of Porto Salvo, which 
was miraculously spared from 
severe damage. This church 
served as Senglea's parish 
church between 1944 and 1957. 

Burlo immediately set h is 
sights and energy on rebuilding 
the basilica. During those years, 
he found effective support and 
valuable assistance from Canon 

. Francesco Abela, procm·ator re­
sponsable for its reconstructiqn. 

Senglea, situated very close to 
the dockyard, was considered a 
dangerous place to live in. Since 
the beginning of the war, most 
Senglea fan1ilies found refuge in 
other safer towns and villages. As 
reconstruction began, while some 
families never returned, others, 
mainly those whose houses had 
escaped the ravages of war, statted 
coming back. So, by the time Burlo 
became archpriest, Senglea ·was 
no longer uninhabited. 

Burlo was eager to see Senglea 
coming back to normality and 
committed special effort to re­
animate the spiritual life of the 
parish. At a time when the role 
of the laity and their active par­
ticipation in the parish was be­
coming increasingly important, 
the value of religious groups -
mainly the Catholic Action, the 

Society of Christian Doctrine 
and the Legion of Mary - statted 
being felt. 

Burlo's first titular feast of 
Maria Bambina was that cele­
brated in september 1948 at the 
church of Our Lady of Porto Salvo. 

In 1953, Giovanni Farrugia, a 
devotee from Senglea, started 
collecting money on his per­
sonal initiative, together with 
gold and silver offerings, so that 
the statue of the Bambina could 
be covered with silver and gold 
plates. Burlo accepted the offer­
ings which Farrugia, with a gen­
uine purpose, had obtained 
from the people. 

Since at the tin1e, the parish had 
other priorities, this proposal was 
left for a later stage. This desire 
which, in reality had been left 
pending since the 1920s, when the 
said statue was crowned by a Vat­
ican decree on September 4, 1921, 
was realised between the years 
1985-1996 when Canons John 
Sladden and Vincent Cachia were 
archpriests of Senglea. . 

To make the people more sensi­
tive to the needs of Senglea, the 
first issue of a local newspaper 
called Invicta was published in 
February-April 1954. The publica­
tion marked the fourth centenary 
since Grand Master Claude de la 
Sengle founded the city which 
still carries his nan1e. Local or­
ganisations contributed articles 
in the newspaper which also pro­
vided historical information 
about the city and useful news on 
daily life. Updates about what was 
going on in Senglea thus reached 
those who, due to the war conse­
quences, found it difficult to re­
tm·n back to their hometown. 

Pope Pius XII declared 1954 to 
be a special Marian Year. In Sen­
glea, various activities were held 
and Burlo led a parish delega­
tion to Rome to participate in a 
Marian congress held on Novem­
ber 1, 1954. That year's main me· 
morial is the marble statue of 
Maria Regina high on the basil­
ica's fa~ade. Jt was blessed by 
Burlo and hoisted in place on 
January 29, 1956. 

"Burlo immediately 
set his sights and 
energy on rebuilding 
the basilica" 

In 1955, Senglea was going 
through a issue that affected the 
Chapter and the people. When 
the Senglea Collegiate, on Janu­
ary 3, 1921, was bestowed the title 
of Minor Basilica by a Vatican de­
cree, it was automatically given 
all the privileges that Rome's 
minor basilicas enjoyed. This in­
cluded precedence over the other 
collegiate churches in Malta. 

This right was never imple­
mented by the Church authori­
ties in Malta. Parishoners living 
in Senglea found this very hard 
to accept and insisted with the 
Chapter not to refrain from in1-
plementing its rights. They 
.pressed hard for the issue to be 
r esolved fairly. During that year, 
for the first time, a lay commis­
sion was formed to work on the 
resolution of this matter. 

By 1956, the rebuilding of the 
basilica was completed. The ar­
chitect in .charge of the recon­
struction was Joseph Caruana, 

while Joseph s_ammut was in 
charge of the building. Since the 
basilica was almost totally re­
built, a new consecration was 
required. This was held by Arch­
bishop Michael Gonzi on August 
24, 1957. In the afternoon of 
August 25, 1957, the statue of the 
Bambina was solemnly trans­
ported from Porto Salvo church 
to the basilica. 

The said Porto Salvo church, 
built between 1670 and 1690, 
was always given importance 
for pastoral work among those 
living in the surrounding area. 
In 1958, the archbishop en­
trusted the church and the con­
vent of St Philip, annexed to it, 
in the hands of the Jesuits, 
thus offering Burlo much 
needed help. 
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November 1, 1954: Senglea's delegat ion in 
Rome for the Congress of Marian 

S anctua ries (from left) Lawrenc:e Grech, 
G!".ace :CasaUetto, Mary Ashmore·, Joseph 

Sammut , An:hpriest 'Burio, :Canan Carmelo 
Muscat, Viictor T~bone, Mary Baron .• Joseph 
Baron, 'Teresa Tabone and Carmelo Tabone. 

AUGUSf 9, 2020 I 45 

March 24, 19S6 (eve of Palm Sunday}: Burlo blessing t he rebuilt basilica so 
that it could be used for the first time on Good Friday of t hat same yea r. 

July 15, 1954: Burlo, a ided by Pio 
Mangion, hois t ing the flag of the Order 
of St John on Senglea's main entrance 
as part of the fourth centenary 
commemorations of the Great Siege 
held in Senglea. 

Sengiea's post-war archpriest 

Senglea now began to face 
new challenges. Apart from the 
shortage of priests, t her e was 
also lack of enthusiasm towards 
t he parish chu r ch among the 
m any families who started liv­
ing in Senglea without being 
born in it. 

The foremost social under­
taking in Senglea was Ospizio 
Santf Anna. Burio, through the 
valuable aid offered by Canon 
Vincent Camilleri, the last 
p rocurator, launched a new be- · 
ginning for th is r eside ntial 
h ome for the elderly. The origi­
n al 18th century building 
lacked modern amenities. Res­
iden ts especially felt the need 
for a radical reform, which was 
t::vt::ntualiy implemented in lhe 
19 70 s and 1980s. 

In the post-war period, Sen­
glea experienced a great sense of 
civic awareness and, on the ini­
tiative of the Queen's Own Band, 
a civic committee was formed 
in 1958. Burlo, together with 
Can.on Carmelo Muscat, repre­
sented the Chapter on this com­
mittee. In this atmosph ere of 
revival, Muscat wrote Innu liI 
Senglea, to which Senglea-born 
Maestro Francesco Tesoriere, on 
February 24, 1959, composed 
the music. 

Th is zeal was somewhat 
thwarted at the b eginning of the 
1960s due to the poJitico­
religiou s d ispute. People found 
other interests that attracted 
them and, unfo1·tunately, the 
people uf Senglea began tu suf­
fer the consequences of division 

January 29, 1956: Burlo · 
blessing t he s t at ue of Maria 

Regina on the basilica's pa rvis. 

due to conflicting political ideas. 
For some time, the debate over 

the question of precedence arose 
again. After the basilica was inau­
gw·ated, the case was first re­
opened by the Jay commission. In 
protest, in 1959, the external fes­
tivities and processions started 
being cancelled. In September 
that year, the statue of Maria 
Bam binawas not even taken out 
of its niche for the feast . In 1960, 
the Good Fdday procession was 
not held and the statues were not 
set in the church. 

The Chapter strove for 40 year s 
for a solution to the issue of prece­
dence, without success. Disputes 
have ceased since then, although 
.Li. - !---- - 1 . - - -- -----~ 1 - - - -- i!- _ .... _ .... 1.111::: 1::s::sut: ua:s ut:vt:r ut:t:u 1u rgut-
ten. Even tJ1ough statements by 
the Cou..11ci!'s Congregation dearly 

cated that Senglea's Collegiate 
·enjoyed the right of precedence, 
discussion on the matter has not 
to be revived. 

Bur lo continued to st ruggle to 
in1prove the embelishment of 
the basilica. In this respect, the 
Ciborium Magnum was the 
major p roject of his t im e, inau­
gurated on March 24, 1964. 

Senglea, so m uch t ied with 
the Great Siege of 1565, cann ot 
but r ecall the siege Oil special 
occasions. In 1965, Malta cele­
brate d its fourth centenary. In 
Senglea , t he organ ising com ­
mittee, under Burlo's direction , 
wor ked with th e aim of mani­
festing the city's vit al r ole in it . 

In or der that pastoral work in 
the parish would be more organ­
ised and coordinated, Bur lo as­
sembled the Parish Pastoral 
Council and he hastened to 
enact the liturgical r eforms as 
directed by Vatican II. 

Due to health reasons, Burlo 
i·esigned from the post of arch­
priest on November 5, 1966. On 
May 21, 1967, h e was appointed 

Honorary Canon of the Metropil­
it an Cathedral Chapter, Mdina, 
and soon after Mgr Coadjutor of 
the said Chapter. 

Mgr Gian Karl Burlo, t he arch­
priest who witnessed Senglea 
rise again from devastation, the 
shepherd dedicated to his flock, 
the erudite theologian and the 
Conventual Chaplain of the Sov­
ereign Military Order of Malta, 
continued to live in Senglea, 
where he died on August 10, 1970 . 

During th e reconstruction of 
the basilica , Burlo intend~d to 
prepare a grave for himself and 
h is successors under neath the 
Chapel of the Blessed Sacra­
ment, as evidenced by the in­
scr iption on a tombstone p laced 
on it . However, after a solemn 
funeral held at the Senglea 
basilica on Augu st 11, he was 
interred at Sant a Maria Addo; 
lorata Cemetery, 

On August 25, 2007, 50 years 
after the reopening of the basil­
ica , the Burlo coat-of arm s was 
sculptured on the church fa!;ade 
in his memory. 
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